
  

  
 

 

 

 

 

City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 

145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 

Monday, March 14, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 

 

I. Moment of Silence 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance  

  

 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the February 22, 2016, City Council Meeting 

 

 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the March 14, 2016 City Council Meeting 
 

 V.         Public Comment 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

 

VI.  Recognition of Retiring City of Spartanburg Employees: 

 

  1. Sgt. Paul Roper, City of Spartanburg Police Department 

  2.     Sgt. Kenneth Knox, City of Spartanburg Fire Department 

  3. Carlton Settle, City of Spartanburg Fleet Maintenance Department   

 

VII.  Ordinance – Second Reading 
 

             A. Authorizing the Lease of 440 South Church Street and for the City Manager  

  to Enter Into a Lease-Purchase Agreement with Spartanburg Development  

  Corporation (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 

 

VIII.    Consent Agenda 

 

  A.  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to The Northside   

  Development Group Donating Property Located at 625 Fulton Avenue –  

  Block Map Sheet 7-12-01-095.00, 629 Fulton Avenue – Block Map Sheet 7- 

  12-01-096.00, and 173 Milan Street – Block Map Sheet 7-12-05-275.00   

  (Second Reading) 

  Presenters:  Mitch Kennedy, Director of Community Services 

                                             Tammie Hoy-Hawkins, Northside Development Group 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

CITY OF SPARTANBURG 
                                          SOUTH CAROLINA 

As required by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Spartanburg will provide interpretive services for the City Council 

Meetings. Requests must be made to the Communications & Marketing Office (596-2020) 24 hours in advance of the meeting. This is a 

Public Meeting and notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

 

 

 

 



  

* Non-Agenda Items 

  City Code Sec. 2-57. Citizen Appearance. Any citizen of the City of  Spartanburg may speak at a regular meeting on any matter   

  pertaining to City Services and operations germane to items within the purview and authority of City Council, except personnel  

  matters, by signing a Citizen’s Appearance form prior to the meeting stating the subject and purpose for speaking. No item  

  considered by Council within the past twelve (12) months may be added as an agenda item other than by decision of City  

  Council. The forms may be obtained from the Clerk and maintained by the same. Each person who gives notice may speak at the  

  designated time and will be limited to a two (2) minute presentation. 

 

 *Agenda Items 

  City Code Sec. 2-56. Addressing Council, Comments or Remarks to Council on Agenda Items Not Requiring Public Hearing. On    

  agenda items not requiring a Public Hearing, please provide to the City Clerk prior to the opening of the meeting, your desire to  

  speak on an agenda item. Remarks shall be limited to five (5) minutes and total remarks on any agenda item shall not exceed  

  twenty (20) minutes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            B. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to Hope Ministries   

  Donating Property Located at 414 Brawley Street - Block Map Sheet 7-12- 

  09-043.00 (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Mitch Kennedy, Director of Community Services 

 

 C. Approving a Development Agreement for the Construction of an Office  

  Building on Liberty Street (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 

 

 D. Approving a Development Agreement for the Construction of a Mixed Use  

  Building at the Northeast Corner of the Daniel Morgan Avenue and West  

  Main Street Intersection (Second Reading) 

  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 

 

IX.      Other Business 

 

              A. Convention & Visitors Bureau New Historic Downtown Walking   

  Map/Mobile Site 

  Presenter:  Will Rothschild, Communication and Marketing Manager 

 

            B. Highland Neighborhood Update 

  Presenter:  Mitch Kennedy, Community Services Director 

 

  X.      City Council Updates 

  

 XI.     Adjournment 

City Council Workshop 

Council Chambers 

Monday, March 14, 2016 

 

   I. Reconvene 

 

  II. Traffic Calming  

 

 III. Adjournment  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Agenda 
Page Two – March 14, 2016 



  

 

          
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III.  



1 

 

  
City Council Meeting  

City Council Chambers 

145 West Broad Street  

Spartanburg, SC 

Monday, February 22, 2016 

5:30 p.m. 

 

These minutes are subject to approval at  

the March 14, 2016 City Council meeting.) 

 

City Council met this date with the following members present: Mayor Junie White, Mayor 

pro tem Sterling Anderson, Councilmembers Jan Scalisi, Jerome Rice, Erica Brown, Laura 

Stille and Rosalyn Henderson Myers. City Manager Ed Memmott and City Attorney Cathy 

McCabe were also in attendance. Notice of the meeting was posted with the Media 24 hours 

in advance according to the Freedom of Information Act. All City Council meetings are 

recorded for a complete transcript. 

 

I. Moment of Silence - observed 

 

II. Pledge of Allegiance – Boy Scouts in attendance assisted with recitation of the Pledge 

of Allegiance.   

  

 III.     Approval of the Minutes of the February 8, 2016, City Council Meeting – 

 Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the minutes as received. 

 Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

 IV.       Approval of Agenda of the February 22, 2016 City Council Meeting – 

 Councilmember Stille made a motion to approve the agenda as received. 

 Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 

 V.         Public Comment - none 
 *Citizen Appearance forms are available at the door and should be submitted to the City Clerk 

 

VI.       Ordinances 

 

 A.  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to The Northside   

  Development  Group Donating Property Located at 625 Fulton Avenue –  

  Block Map Sheet 7-12-01-095.00, 629 Fulton Avenue – Block Map Sheet 7- 

  12-01-096.00, and 173 Milan Street – Block Map Sheet 7-12-05-275.00 (First  

  Reading) 

  Presenters:  Mitch Kennedy, Director of Community Services 

                                             Tammie Hoy-Hawkins, Northside Development Group 

                        Mr. Kennedy presented the item to City Council as follows: 



2 

 

  “In 2014, the Spartanburg Housing Authority (SHA), City of Spartanburg (City),  

  Northside Development Group (NDG), Northside Voyagers, and many other  

  stakeholders finalized the Northside Transformation Plan.  A key element of the  

  Transformation Plan was development of a diversified mix of new and   

  rehabilitated housing.  Consistent with the Transformation Plan, new housing has  

  and is being developed in the Brawley Street area.  Rehabilitation of single family 

  homes in the Cleveland Heights area of the Northside is also underway.  A  

  significant number of abandoned, dilapidated structures have also been   

  demolished clearing these sites for infill redevelopment.  

  

  To facilitate continued redevelopment, staff is recommending the donation of  

  three properties to the NDG.   

  These properties are:  

 

  625 Fulton Avenue, Block Map Sheet 7-12-01-095.00, Purchased: 2003 ($14,070)  

 629 Fulton Avenue, Block Map Sheet 7-12-01-096.00, Purchased: 2003 ($18,100) 

 173 Milan Street, Block Map Sheet 7-12-05-275.00, Purchased: 2010 ($17,000)  

 

  The properties were purchased with the intention of making them available for  

  redevelopment using Community Development Block Grant funds.   

                                                                                                              

  ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of an ordinance to donate 625 Fulton Avenue, 

  Block Map Sheet 7-12-01-095.00, 629 Fulton Avenue, Block Map Sheet 7-12-01- 

  096.00, and 173 Milan Street, Block Map Sheet 7-12-05-275.00 to Northside  

  Development Group for redevelopment purposes.” 

                        Ms. Hoy-Hawkins overviewed the Northside Housing Strategy to include  

  Cleveland Heights, Fulton/Aden, Magnolia/Howard, and Forest/Brawley streets.  

  She shared the NIP activity to date as 4 acquisitions and 14 demolitions. She  

  explained the Oakview resident support plan, highlighting relocation support, case 

  management, and supportive services.  

  After the Northside update, Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to   

  approve the ordinance as presented on first reading. Councilmember Scalisi  

  seconded the motion, which carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

 B. Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Deed to Hope Ministries   

  Donating Property Located at 414 Brawley Street - Block Map Sheet 7-12- 

  09-043.00 (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Mitch Kennedy, Director of Community Services 

 Mr. Kennedy presented the item to Council as follows: 

  “Hope Ministries (HOPE) is a non-profit that provides housing and supportive  

  services to previously homeless men through its partnership with Miracle Hill  

  Rescue Mission of Spartanburg. HOPE operates one home in the City which is  

  located on High Street. Staff has found HOPE to be a reliable service provider.  

  Under the City’s zoning ordinance, a maximum of five unrelated individuals can  

  legally reside in any residential structure.  

 



3 

 

  HOPE recently accepted donation of a home located on Raindrop Street.  HOPE  

  intended to renovate the house and use it in its program. The Northside   

  Development Group (NDG) had previously targeted the same property for   

  acquisition/demolition so that the parcel could be incorporated into the desired  

  “footprint” of a potential mixed-income, multi-family apartment development.   

  HOPE is not particularly tied to the Raindrop location, but is committed to adding 

  another home to its program.   

 

  NDG, HOPE, and the City have reached a tentative agreement that would satisfy  

  all parties. NDG agreed to purchase the Raindrop property from HOPE.  The City  

  would donate a vacant lot on Brawley Street to HOPE for the development of a  

  new residence.  The City acquired 414 Brawley Street using $9,000 in   

  Neighborhood Stabilization Program Funds from the S.C. State Housing Finance  

  and Development Authority.  

 

  Under this proposed agreement, the City would also provide HOPE with $25,000  

  in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to assist with the   

  development of the new home on Brawley Street. HOPE would apply the sale  

  proceeds from the Raindrop Street property toward the new construction.   

  Providing assistance and housing to previously homeless individuals is an eligible 

  CDBG activity and something that the US Department of Housing and Urban  

  Development (HUD) is encouraging grantees to undertake.  The $25,000 is  

  already budgeted for housing activities on the Northside.  Should Council approve 

  the donation of property to HOPE, staff will develop a written agreement with  

  HOPE regarding the use of property and CDBG funding.  This plan will require  

  approval of the State Housing Finance and Development Authority.                                                                                                                  

  ACTION REQUESTED: Approval of an ordinance to donate 414 Brawley Street, 

  Block Map Sheet 7-12-09-043.00 to Hope Ministries for the development of  

  housing for the homeless.  

  BUDGET AND FINANCIAL DATA: $25,000 - Community Development Block 

  Grant Funds”. 

  Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented  

  on first reading. Councilmember Brown seconded the motion, which carried  

  unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

 C. Approving a Development Agreement for the Construction of an Office  

  Building on Liberty Street (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 

                        Mr. Story presented the item to City Council as follows: 

  “The City owns properties along Liberty Street behind the USC Upstate Johnson  

  College of Business and Economics extending north behind the Marriott to Daniel 

  Morgan Avenue.  In recent years, we have carefully considered development  

  possibilities for these properties which we believe will play a significant role in  

  furthering our economic momentum.   

 



4 

 

  Recently a development team led by local business leader Jimmy Gibbs and  

  Andrew Cajka has proposed the development of an office building project   

  intended to be catalyst for further development in the area.  The proposal involves 

  a Class A professional office building of no less than 3 stories and 50,000 square  

  feet capable of accommodating 250 professional office workers.  A minimum of  

  two thirds of the building would be leased to corporate tenants new to the City of  

  Spartanburg thereby ensuring a significant increase in the city’s white collar job  

  count and an appreciable boost to the downtown economy. 

 

  The City is being asked to incentivize the project in three ways.   

  1.  Provide the site at no cost. 

  2.  Provide Gibbs with limited-time defined development rights for  

       potential subsequent development on adjacent property. 

   3.  Relocate a short portion of Silver Hill Street to bring the intersection  

            into alignment and maximize the development potential of the area. 

  There are no property tax incentives or other financial concessions proposed.  

 

  This project will strengthen the city in a variety of important ways including  

  boosting the tax base and increasing professional office employment.  We   

  welcome any questions you may have.   

 

  We recommend approval of the attached ordinance.” 

  After discussion, Councilmember Stille made a motion to approve the   

  ordinance as presented on first reading. Mayor pro tem Anderson seconded the  

  motion, which  carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

 D. Approving a Development Agreement for the Construction of a Mixed Use  

  Building at the Northeast Corner of the Daniel Morgan Avenue and West  

  Main Street Intersection (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 

             Mr. Story presented the item to City Council as follows: 

  “The City owns the parcel at the northeast corner of West Main Street and Daniel  

  Morgan Avenue which is currently used as surface parking.  With the significant  

  momentum apparent on the western end of downtown, we believe surface parking 

  is no longer the highest and best use of this prominent corner. 

  F.T. Cantrell Wagons, LLC owns a portion of this parking lot and the building to  

  the east of this parcel that contains apartments and the wine shop.  They also  

  possess an access easement across the city owned parcel.  Royce Camp, who has  

  lead several successful downtown projects including most recently the   

  development of the new mixed use building on Wall Street, is a partner in F.T.  

  Cantrell Wagons, LLC.  For these reasons, if this corner is to be developed, he is  

  uniquely positioned as the logical partner in development of this site.   

 

   The proposed development consists of a modern five story mixed use building  

  containing 30 market rate apartments and almost 3,000 square feet of retail or  



5 

 

  restaurant space on the ground floor frontage along Main Street.  The building  

  would also contain underground private parking. 

 

  We think this project furthers several important development goals.  It adds to the  

  density of people and positive activity downtown, adds to the number of new  

  residential units which appear to be in demand, and provides new well-sized  

  commercial spaces on Main Street.   

 

  The project would reduce the available public parking in that area by a total of 14  

  spaces.  While we recognize the need to thoughtfully manage parking availability, 

  our concerns are mitigated by our ability to add 65 public spaces one block away  

  at the corner of Spring and Broad.  These projects, taken together, will enhance  

  the vibrancy of the western end of downtown and strengthen the market available  

  to businesses currently in the area. We welcome any questions you may have. 

 

  We recommend approval of the attached ordinance.” 

  After discussion, Councilmember Rice made a motion to approve the ordinance  

  as presented on first reading. Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which  

  carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

              E. Authorizing the Lease of 440 South Church Street and for the City Manager  

  to Enter Into a Lease-Purchase Agreement with Spartanburg Development  

  Corporation (First Reading) 

  Presenter:  Ed Memmott, City Manager 

             Mr. Memmott presented the item to City Council as follows: 

  “Since 2009, the City has leased space at the Wright Center for its Building  

  Inspections, Planning, Neighborhood Services, Construction and Facilities  

  Management, and Engineering Administration departments.  While the City  

  needed office space for these departments, the major motivation to lease this  

  space was to assist in the redevelopment of the former Mary H. Wright   

  Elementary School.  While reasonably functional, the office space was never  

  optimal for City use due to the building’s layout and limited parking.  In spite of  

  the challenges, the City was willing to continue to lease and use this space   

  provided that the Spartanburg Housing Authority (SHA) continued as a tenant in  

  the building.     

 

  Regretfully, the Wright Center is now in foreclosure.  Its future is uncertain. The  

  Spartanburg Housing Authority has relocated from the building.  Given these  

  circumstances, staff believes the City should find other office space to meet its  

  needs.    

 

  After evaluating various sites, staff has determined that the former South Carolina 

  Department of Employment and Workforce building located at 440 South Church  

  Street is the best option.  It is owned by the State of South Carolina and is   

  approximately 7,000 square feet in size. The 2.1 acre site has ample customer  

  parking in front and additional employee parking in the rear. The building is  



6 

 

  easily assessable from South Church Street.  The building is in good condition  

  and only in need of cosmetic repairs that would include new carpet, painting, and  

  reconfiguration of a few non-structural interior walls.  The property was listed for  

  sale for $600,000.  Staff submitted an initial purchase offer of $395,000.  The  

  state had the property appraised by an independent appraiser for $520,000.  After  

  negotiation, a tentative purchase price of $430,000 was accepted by the state.   

  Cost of upfit for the building will total approximately $70,000.   

 

  Instead of funding acquisition and upfit directly from the City’s reserve fund, staff 

  is recommending that the City enter into a lease-purchase agreement for the  

  building.  Under this proposal, the Spartanburg Development Corporation (SDC)  

  would purchase the building using the proceeds of a bank loan.  The City would  

  lease the building for a term of five (5) years.  The SDC would use the lease  

  payments from the City to pay debt service.  At the end of the lease, the City  

  would have the option to purchase the building for a nominal sum. Structuring the 

  purchase in this manner would maintain the City’s liquidity and spread the costs  

  of the acquisition over five years.   Total costs to the City for rent, utilities, and  

  insurance will total approximately $120,000 annually during the lease.  During  

  the five year lease, the City will achieve nominal savings.  After the debt on the  

  building is fully paid, annual savings as compared to lease expenses at the Wright  

  Center will approach $100,000 annually.   

 

  ACTION REQUESTED:  Approval of an Ordinance to authorize the City  

  Manager to finalize a lease- purchase agreement with the SDC for 440 South  

  Church Street.   

 

  BUDGET & FINANCIAL DATA:   Lease-purchase of 440 South Church Street 

  can be achieved within currently budgeted operational funding.  Once the debt  

  associated with purchase is paid after five years, the City will achieve annual  

  savings of approximately $100,000.” 

  

  After discussion, Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to approve the   

  ordinance as presented on first reading. Councilmember Scalisi seconded the  

  motion, which  passed 5 to 2. Mayor White, Mayor pro tem Anderson,   

  Councilmembers Scalisi, Councilmember Stille, and Councilmember Brown voted 

  in favor of the  ordinance. Councilmember Rice and Councilmember Henderson  

  Myers voted against the ordinance.  
 

VII. Consent Agenda 

 

 A. Ordinance To Amend the City of Spartanburg, South Carolina Zoning  

  Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element, by Amending  

  Section 206, Changes to District Boundaries, Specifically Parcels #6-21- 

  13.001.02 & 001.00 Located at 243 and 245 East Blackstock Road, which are  

  currently Zoned LOD with a Land Use Designation of Limited Office District 

  to Zone B-1 with a Land Use Designation of Neighborhood Shopping   



7 

 

  District; and Providing for Severability and an Effective Date (Second  

  Reading) 

                        Presenter:  Natalia Rosario, Planning Staff 

 Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 

 presented. Councilmember Stille seconded the motion, which carried 

 unanimously 7 to 0. 

 

VIII.     Other Business 

 

    A. Presentation and Discussion with the Institute for Child Success 

  Presenter:  Chris Story, Assistant City Manager 

             Mr. Story presented the item to City Council as follows: 

  “As you know, as part of the Way to Wellville initiative, the City is a sub-  

  recipient of a grant from the federal government’s Social Innovation Fund to  

  explore ways to finance the expansion and delivery of quality early care and  

  education to city children age zero to five.  The grant has enabled us to receive  

  technical assistance from specialists affiliated with the Institute for Child Success  

  (ICS).  We’ve been working steadily on this for months with considerable   

  assistance from the Mary Black Foundation and the Spartanburg Academic  

  Movement (SAM).  This study will be complete in the late spring or summer.   

 

  ICS’s team of national experts will be in Spartanburg from the 22nd through the  

  24th meeting with various partners in the process.  We want to take advantage of  

  their presence by including a presentation and dialogue with you at your regularly 

  scheduled meeting.  While they will not have a final report in hand, we believe  

  that we can provide valuable background information that will support subsequent 

  conversations later this year.” 

             Mr. Story introduced the ICS Team, who updated Council on the progress of the  

  ICS efforts in Spartanburg; Joe Waters, Executive Vice President, Megan Golden, 

  Senior Fellow and Director of Pay for Success Financing, and Megan Carolan,  

  Associate Director for Policy Research. 

  Council received the report as information. 

 

  IX.      City Council Updates 

  Councilmember Stille expressed her excitement about the many good things      

  happening in the city, and the productive meeting that evening. 

             Councilmember Brown mentioned the Bluegrass Music series beginning on Friday at   

  the Chapman Cultural Center. 

  Councilmember Henderson Myers shared she presented a proclamation on behalf of  

             the City at the Converse College ceremony honoring outgoing President Betsy Fleming.   

  She mentioned that she took a walking tour of the northside with her Leadership      

  Spartanburg Group. She mentioned that Brenda Lee would be chairman of the old Mary   

  Wright School committee and that the bank note regarding the foreclosure of the     

  property had been extended until June. She shared that she had participated in a Black  

             History Bowl the past weekend. 



8 

 

             Councilmember Scalisi commented on the excellent agenda and the path forward for   

  the city. She suggested councilmembers take advantage of the information ACOG has to   

  offer. She congratulated and thanked staff for the retreat, and mentioned that there would 

  be more workshops on subjects discussed at the retreat. She shared that she,     

  Councilmember Henderson Myers and Councilmember Rice would be attending the   

  National League of Cities Congressional Cities Conference in Washington, SD              

  March 5 – 9. 

  Councilmember Rice agreed that the council meeting was outstanding. He shared that   

  there would be a walk through the Highland neighborhood the following day to identify   

  projects for that area. He mentioned that the unveiling of the Charles Atchison     

  Boulevard sign would be on Wednesday, February 24 at 1:30 p.m. 

  Councilmember Anderson thanked staff for the work done in the Park Hills area. He   

  stated that he was excited about the growth in the city. He commended Randall Farr and   

  his staff in the traffic division for the changes made in the traffic lanes at Daniel Morgan   

  and W. Main at the QT. He thanked staff for taking care of a tree that was down at   

  Arrowhead Circle and W.O. Ezell Boulevard. 

  Mayor White thanked everyone for coming to the meeting, and asked the      

  councilmembers attending the NLC conference to bring back helpful information to the   

  rest of council. He also asked everyone to get involved in their neighborhood     

  associations. 

              

    X.     Adjournment – Mayor pro tem Anderson made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  

             Councilmember Scalisi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. The  

             meeting adjourned at 7:09 p.m. 

 

 

 

              _______________________________ 

    Connie S. McIntyre, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IX. A  



     

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 

 

 
 

TO:  Ed Memmott, City Manager   

 

FROM: Will Rothschild, Communications Manager   

 

SUBJECT: CVB’s New Historic Downtown Walking Map/Mobile Site 

 

DATE: March 14, 2016 

 

 

The Spartanburg Convention & Visitors Bureau recently launched a new mobile platform and 

accompanying printed marketing collateral that adds to the rising level of interest and activity in Downtown 

Spartanburg. In addition to the printed map, the mobile-friendly Historic Downtown Walking Map can be 

accessed online at www.hubcitytour.com, and is a fun, user-friendly way for first-time visitors and 

longtime residents alike to experience Downtown Spartanburg. CVB Executive Director Chris Jennings 

and the team that developed the website and map will show how it works and their goals for this new 

map/tour. 

 

 

http://www.hubcitytour.com/


  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IX. B  



   Memorandum to Council   

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council   

 

FROM: Mitch Kennedy, Director of Community Services 

      

SUBJECT: Highland Neighborhood   

 

DATE: March 10, 2016 

 

 

Staff believes the redevelopment of Stewart Park (with the opening of the Thornton Activity Center), the 

construction of Highland Crossing Apartments, and the recently announced partnership with Meeting Street 

Academy/Spartanburg County School District 7 have sparked new optimism for the Highland 

neighborhood.   

 

With this momentum, staff believes it would be appropriate for City and other potential partner 

organizations such as the Spartanburg Housing Authority, the Highland Neighborhood Association, the 

Bethlehem Center, Spartanburg County School District 7/Meeting Street Academy, and Macedonia 

Missionary Baptist Church to explore opportunities and work together with the intent of improving 

Highland.  

 

Staff would like to engage these organizations in a Highland “working group.”  Our first step would be to 

develop a straight forward Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that would define the roles and 

commitments of the respective parties.  Staff is under no illusion here.  We realize the depths of the 

challenges facing Highland but believe it is time to get started on a comprehensive strategy of 

improvement.     

 

It is important for other prospective partners to know that City Council is interested in and generally 

supportive of these efforts in Highland.  Prior to formally engaging potential partners on the development 

of a MOU, staff wanted to brief Council and, hopefully, receive Council’s endorsement to move forward.    

 

Staff understands that Council will have to formally approve any MOU for Highland.       

 

  

                                                                                                             

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Worksession 
 

           II. 
 

 



Council Workshop  

Traffic Calming 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council    

 

FROM: Ed Memmott, City Manager  

      

SUBJECT: Traffic Calming  

 

DATE: March 9, 2016 

 

After the conclusion of the regular meeting, I would like to brief Council on traffic calming as a 

“workshop.”   Workshops are intentionally less structured than regular meetings.  They are expected to be 

more interactive.  Council members are encouraged to ask questions at any time. Council members are also 

encouraged to engage their Council colleagues, ask questions, and/or solicit the opinion and input of 

Council colleagues about the matter being discussed.  Workshops can also accommodate citizen questions 

and input in an informal manner.  The Mayor may allow for questions and comments “from the floor” from 

any citizen in attendance.   

 

Some workshops will be intended to only convey information to Council.  Others will be intended to move 

a matter towards resolution.  The latter will be the case on Monday.  My goal for Monday’s discussion is to 

put Council in a position to make any changes to the traffic calming program at the March 28 meeting.   

 

After the discussion about traffic calming is concluded, I will ask Council about scheduling other topics 

that were identified at the Council retreat for future workshops.         

 

                                                                                                              

 

 

 


